
For requests for further information 
Contact:  Cherry Foreman 
Tel:  01270 686460 
E-Mail: cherry foreman@cheshireeast.gov.uk with any apologies 
 

 

 
Cabinet Member for Finance and Assets 

Agenda 
 

Date: Tuesday, 16th June, 2015 

Time: 11.00 am 

Venue: Room S1 - Westfields, Middlewich Road, Sandbach CW11 1HZ 
 
The agenda is divided into 2 parts. Part 1 is taken in the presence of the public and press. Part 2 
items will be considered in the absence of the public and press for the reasons indicated on the 
agenda and at the foot of each report. 
 
PART 1 – MATTERS TO BE CONSIDERED WITH THE PUBLIC AND PRESS PRESENT 
 
1. Apologies for Absence   
 
2. Declarations of Interest   
 
 To provide an opportunity for Members and Officers to declare any disclosable pecuniary and 

non-pecuniary interests in any item on the agenda. 
 
3. Public Speaking Time/Open Session   

 
 In accordance with Procedure Rules Nos.11 and 35 a period of 10 minutes is allocated for 

members of the public to address the meeting on any matter relevant to the work of the body 
in question.  Individual members of the public may speak for up to 5 minutes but the 
Chairman or person presiding will decide how the period of time allocated for public speaking 
will be apportioned where there are a number of speakers. Members of the public are not 
required to give notice to use this facility. However, as a matter of courtesy, a period of 24 
hours’ notice is encouraged. 
 
Members of the public wishing to ask a question at the meeting should provide at least three 
clear working days’ notice in writing and should include the question with that notice. This will 
enable an informed answer to be given. 

 
4. Disposal of Land adjacent to Audlem Public Hall  (Pages 1 - 6) 
 
 To consider the transfer of the freehold title of land to the Audlem Public Hall Management 

Committee. 
 
 

Public Document Pack



This page is intentionally left blank



1 

 

 
 
 
CHESHIRE EAST COUNCIL 
 
REPORT TO PORTFOLIO HOLDER – FINANCE  
 

Report of: Executive Director Economic Growth and Prosperity            
Subject/Title: Disposal of land adjacent to Audlem Public Hall 
Date of Meeting:  9th June 2015 

Portfolio Holder:  Councillor Peter Groves  
                                                                  
1.0 Report Summary 
   
1.1 The purpose of this report is to seek approval to transfer the freehold title of 

land adjacent to Audlem Public Hall (shown edged red on the attached plan) 
to the Audlem Public Hall Management Committee. 

 
2.0      Decision Requested 
 
2.1 It is recommended: 

 
2.2 Subject to the response to the public space advertisements referred to in 8.3, 

the land shown hatched black on the attached plan be sold to the Audlem 
Public Hall Management Committee for a consideration of £1 which is less 
than best consideration. Using the 2003 General Disposal Consent powers,  
releasing the site for the undervalue of £1, will result in an undervalue of 
between £3k and £5k .The social, economic and environmental benefits are to  
facilitate an Annexe to the Audlem Public Hall to provide improved facilities for 
the village detailed in 3.2 . 
 

2.3 The Transfer is based on the following terms namely that:  
 

• The transfer will protect community use of the asset. 
 

• The transfer would take place for a nominal value (£1) and the Audlem 
Public Hall Management Committee will be wholly responsible for the 
service and the asset save insofar as the Council has residual legal 
responsibilities under contracts or legislative provisions. 

   

• If allowing change of use, the agreement would secure an overage 
payment for the Council if there is a future planning permission which 
enhances the value of the asset or the Audlem Public Hall 
Management Committee sells the asset within an 15 year period with 
increase in value/ proceeds of sale returning to Cheshire East . 

 
 
2.4 The existing use has an unrestricted value which is in the region of £3,000 to 

£5,000 and therefore the Council proposes to forego the capital receipt in this 
instance to support the promotion of well being as outlined herein.  

 
 
 
 

Page 1 Agenda Item 4



2 

 

 
3.0 Reasons for Recommendations 

 
3.1 The extent of the land owned by the Council extends to approximately 0.20 

acres (or thereabouts) and is shown hatched on the attached plan for 
identification purposes. The land is considered surplus and does not perform 
an operational function for the Council.   

 
3.2 Audlem Parish Council have identified the need for improved sport and 

recreational facilities and are proposing to add an Annexe to the existing hall 
to provide improved facilities for the village. This will be a special purchaser 
arrangement.   
 

3.3 The land owned by the Council is the only part of the Council’s land available 
which could be built upon to provide the Annexe. The land does not perform 
any operational function, is not considered to be suitable for marketing for a 
disposal to a third party, is of minimal value and is considered a liability in 
terms of insurance and maintenance/repair for the Council. 

 
 
4.0 Wards Affected 
 
4.1 Audlem 
 
 
5.0 Local Ward Members  
 
5.1 Councillor Rachel Bailey 
 
 
6.0 Policy Implications including - Carbon reduction  
                                                             - Health 
6.1  N/A 
 
 
7.0 Financial Implications  
 
7.1  The Council proposes to forego the capital receipt in this instance to support 

the promotion of well being as outlined herein and to create savings in relation 
to the costs of holding of the land. 

 
7.2 The impact of the transfer to Audlem Public Hall Management Committee 

would have minimal financial impact on CEC budget in 15-16 as there are 
currently minimal operational costs. 

   
7.3 Once the land has transferred, then all Repair, Maintenance, Utility and Rates 

become the responsibility of the Audlem Public Hall Management Committee 
and that they would be directly liable. 

 
8.0      Legal Implications (Authorised by the Borough Solicitor) 
 
8.1  The Localism Act 2011 introduced the General Power of Competence, which 

allows the Council to do anything an individual can do, provided it is not 
prohibited by other legislation.  These powers have replaced the previous 

Page 2



3 

 

wellbeing powers, however, the use of these powers must be in support of a 
reasonable and accountable decision made in line with public law principles. 

 
8.2  The Council has the power to grant a lease of the land pursuant to S123 of 

The Local Government Act 1972 subject to any disposal for 7 years or more 
being at the best consideration that can reasonably be obtained. As there is 
open space within the land hatched black on the attached plan, then it was 
necessary to advertise the potential disposal of the land under the provision of 
the Local Government Act. The adverts have been placed in the press and the 
period for representations to be made (two weeks) has now passed.  

 
8.3 An objection to the disposal of Public Open Space has been made. The 

objection is concerned with regard to the loss of public space and that it will 
result in the land being developed for a residential development. However, the 
Council is proposing to restrict the potential future use of this land within the 
Conveyance aswell as an overage provision to ensure the Council the 
proceeds of any sale returns to the Council.  

 
8.4  The General Disposal Consent 2003 authorises the disposal of land for 7 

years or more at less than best consideration if the undervalue is £2million or 
less, as in this case and subject to those powers being exercised in line with 
public law principles. 

 
8.5  The Council has a fiduciary duty at all times to the taxpayers and must fulfil 

this duty in a way which is accountable to local people. 
 

8.6  All disposals must comply with the European Commission’s State aid rules.  
When disposing of land at less than best consideration the Council is providing 
a subsidy to the occupier of the land.  In such cases the Council must ensure 
that the nature and the amount of the subsidy complies with State aid rules, 
failure to comply means that the aid is unlawful and may result in the benefit 
being recovered with interest from the recipient.  If the occupier receives less 
than approximately £155,000 (200,000 Euros) in state aid over a 3 year period 
then the De Minimis Regulation will apply (small amounts of aid are unlikely to 
distort competition). 

 
8.7 Audlem Public Hall Management Committee have agreed to pay the Councils 

reasonable costs associated with the transfer. 
 
9.0  Risk Management  
 
9.1 N/A 
 
 
10.0  Background  
 
10.1  The Annexe to be built will provide (amongst other things) a new community 

facility for the elderly which would be run by Audlem and District Community 
Action (ADCA).  This is required as the main elderly facility (Thornton House) 
has been demolished by Wulvern Housing.  A recent assessment of facilities 
in Audlem has confirmed the lack of suitable alternative buildings to provide 
this service. 

 

Page 3



4 

 

10.2 The building would provide much needed changing facilities for Audlem 
Football Club and would provide facilities for the village Youth Club who have 
currently ceased to operate due to lack of suitable facilities. 

 
 
10.3 The building would also provide facilities for Audlem 5A Drama Group.  

Although the existing Public Hall is currently used for theatre productions, 
temporary dressing rooms and storage are used which are not suitable.  The 
current arrangements are problematic due to the increased level of 
participation of children and need to comply with statutory regulations 
applicable to working with children.  The current arrangements do not satisfy 
the regulations.  

 
10.4 The building could also provide non clinical medical services via Audlem 

Medical Practice and NHS service providers for the area. 
 
10.5 Audlem Public Hall Management Committee currently has a bid for funding 

pending. The attached letter of intent was sent last March to enable the bid 
process to proceed and now the transfer of the land to the Committee must 
take place ASAP so that the funding opportunity is not lost.  

 
 
11. 0  Access to Information 
 

           The background papers relating to this report can be inspected by contacting 
the report writer: 
Name:  Paul Carter 
Designation: Senior Valuer  
Tel No: 01270 686128    
Email: paul.carter@cheshireeast.gov.uk 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 4



5 

 

 

 

Page 5



6 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 6


	Agenda
	4 Disposal of Land adjacent to Audlem Public Hall

